City Project No. WT22008 / Federal-Aid Project No. STPLR-7500(289)

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

CONTENTS	
ARTICLE I INTRODUCTION	
ARTICLE II STATEMENT OF WORK	
ARTICLE III CONSULTANT'S REPORTS OR MEETINGS	
ARTICLE IV PERFORMANCE PERIOD	4
ARTICLE V ALLOWABLE COSTS AND PAYMENTS	4
ARTICLE VI TERMINATION	6
ARTICLE VII COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS	6
ARTICLE VIII RETENTION OF RECORDS/AUDIT	6
ARTICLE IX AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES	7
ARTICLE X SUBCONTRACTING	9
ARTICLE XI EQUIPMENT PURCHASE	9
ARTICLE XII STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES	
ARTICLE XIII CONFLICT OF INTEREST	11
ARTICLE XIV REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL CONSIDERATION \dots	12
ARTICLE XV PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING CITY, STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDS FO	
LOBBYING	12
ARTICLE XVI STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE	13
ARTICLE XVII DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION	14
ARTICLE XVIII FUNDING REQUIREMENTS	14
ARTICLE XIX CHANGE IN TERMS	15
ARTICLE XX DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) PARTICIPATION	15
ARTICLE XXI CONTINGENT FEE	17
ARTICLE XXII DISPUTES	17
ARTICLE XXIII INSPECTION OF WORK	17
ARTICLE XXIV SAFETY	18
ARTICLE XXV INSURANCE	18
ARTICLE XXVI OWNERSHIP OF DATA	18
ARTICLE XXVII CLAIMS FILED BY THE CITY'S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR	19
ARTICLE XXVIII CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA	19
ARTICLE XXIX NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION	20

City Project No. WT22008 / Federal-Aid Project No. STPLR-7500(289)

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XXX EVALUATION OF CONSULTANT	20
ARTICLE XXXI RETENTION OF FUNDS	20
ARTICLE XXXII NOTIFICATION	21
ARTICLE XXXIII CONTRACT	21
ARTICLE XXXIV SIGNATURES	21
Additional California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Exhibits Incorporated:	
Exhibit 10-I "Notice to Proposers Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information Exhibit 10-K "Consultant Certification of Costs and Financial Management System Exhibit 10-O1 "Consultant Proposal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Communication Exhibit 10-O2 "Consultant Contract Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Communication Exhibit 10-Q "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities"	em" itment"
Exhibit 10-U "Consultant in Management Position Conflict of Interest Statement Exhibit 12-B "Bidders List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE's) Exhibit 15-H "DBE Information – Good Faith Efforts"	
Exhibit 17-F "Final Report-Utilization of DBE First Tier Subcontractors" Exhibit 17-O "DBE Certification Status Change"	

ARTICLE I INTRODUCTION

The provisions contained in this exhibit are hereby made a part of the consultant contract for this project. The provisions are additive to the Professional Services Contract and shall be physically attached to the Contract.

"Scope of Services" in the following articles is defined as the combination of the project scope of work and the corresponding fee to complete the scope of work.

City Project No. WT22008 / Federal-Aid Project No. STPLR-7500(289)

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE II STATEMENT OF WORK

A. Services to be Furnished

See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract.

B. Design Standards

The Consultant shall perform the services in accordance with the City of Stockton Standard Plans & Specifications (current edition), and Caltrans 2010 Standard Plans & Specifications and any amendments thereto.

- C. Consultant's Endorsement on Plans, Specification and Estimates/other Data The responsible Consultant/engineer shall sign all plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her, and where appropriate, indicate his/her California registration number.
- D. Right of Way

See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract.

E. Subsurface Investigation

See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract.

F. The City's Obligations

See Section 7 "Rights and Duties of City", of the Professional Services Contract.

G. Conferences, Visits to Site, Inspection of Work

The Consultant and any subcontractor shall permit the CITY, the state, and the FHWA if federal participating funds are used in this contract; to meet, review, and inspect the project activities and files at all reasonable times during the performance period of this contract including review and inspection on a daily basis. Cost incurred by Consultant for meetings, subsequent to the initial meeting shall be included in the fee.

H. Checking Shop Drawings/Submittals

See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract.

I. Documentation

The Consultant shall document the results of their services to the satisfaction of the CITY, and if applicable, the state and FHWA. This may include preparation of progress and final reports, plans, specifications and estimates, or similar evidence of attainment of the scope of work objectives.

City Project No. WT22008 / Federal-Aid Project No. STPLR-7500(289)

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

J. Number of Copies
 See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract.

K. Surveys

See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract, to determine if Consultant will be providing survey services.

L. Consultant Services During Construction See Exhibit "A", Scope of Services of the Professional Services Contract, to determine if Consultant will be providing services during construction, such as materials testing, construction surveys, etc. Also see Exhibit "B," Compensation to the Professional Services Contract, for method of payment requirements.

ARTICLE III CONSULTANT'S REPORTS OR MEETINGS

- A. Consultant shall submit progress reports at least once a month. The report should be sufficiently detailed for the Project Manager to determine, if Consultant is performing to expectations, or is on schedule; to provide communication of interim findings, and to sufficiently address any difficulties or special problems encountered, so remedies can be developed.
- B. Consultant's Project Manager shall meet with CITY'S Project Manager, as needed, to discuss progress on the contract.

ARTICLE IV PERFORMANCE PERIOD

A. Effective Contract Dates

See Section 5 – Schedule and Term of the Professional Services Contract.

B. Contract Award

Consultant is advised that any recommendation for contract award is not binding on the CITY until the contract is fully executed and approved by the CITY.

ARTICLE V ALLOWABLE COSTS AND PAYMENTS

A. The method of payment for this contract will be based on actual cost plus a fixed fee. The CITY will reimburse Consultant for actual costs (including labor costs, employee benefits, travel, equipment rental costs, overhead and other direct costs) incurred by Consultant in performance of the work. Consultant will not be reimbursed for actual costs that exceed the estimated wage rates, employee benefits, travel, equipment rental, overhead, and other estimated costs set forth in the approved Consultant's Scope of Services, unless additional reimbursement is provided for by contract amendment. In no event, will Consultant be reimbursed for overhead costs at a rate that exceeds the CITY's approved overhead rate set forth in the Scope of Services.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

In the event, that the CITY determines that a change to the work from that specified in the Scope of Services and contract is required, the contract time or actual costs reimbursable by the CITY shall be adjusted by Contract Change Order to accommodate the changed work. The maximum total cost as specified in Paragraph "H" shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by Contract Change Order.

- B. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, the CITY will pay Consultant a fixed fee of (See Exhibit B to Professional Services Contract). The fixed fee is nonadjustable for the term of the contract, except in the event of a significant change in the scope of work and such adjustment is made by Contract Change Order.
- C. Reimbursement for transportation and subsistence costs shall not exceed the rates specified in the approved Compensation Schedule- Exhibit B to the Professional Services Contract.
- D. When milestone cost estimates arrears included in the approved Scope of Services, shall obtain prior written approval for a revised milestone cost estimate from the Project Manager before exceeding such cost estimate.
- E. Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based on services provided and allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of Consultant's fixed fee will be included in the monthly progress payments. If Consultant fails to submit the required deliverable items according to the schedule set forth in the Statement of Work, the CITY shall have the right to delay payment or terminate this Contract in accordance with the provisions of Article VI Termination.
- F. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any work performed prior to approval of this contract.
- G. Consultant will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures will permit upon receipt by the CITY's Project Manager of itemized invoices in triplicate. Invoices shall be submitted no later than 45 calendar days after the performance of work for which Consultant is billing. Invoices shall detail the work performed on each milestone and each project as applicable. Invoices shall follow the format stipulated for the approved Scope of Services and shall reference this contract number and project title. Final invoice must contain the final cost and all credits due the CITY including any equipment purchased under the provisions of Article XV Equipment Purchase of this contract. The final invoice should be submitted within 60 calendar days after completion of Consultant's work. Invoices shall be mailed to the CITY's Project Manager at the following address:

City of Stockton, Public Works Department 22 E. Weber Avenue, Room 301 Stockton, CA, 95202

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

- H. The total amount payable by the CITY including the fixed fee shall not exceed the amount noted in Section 2 Compensation of the Professional Services Contract.
- Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the salary range identified in the approved Scope of Services and is approved by the Public Works Director.

For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the California Labor Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result of changes in the prevailing wage rates are reimbursable.

J. All subcontracts in excess of \$25,000 shall contain the above provisions.

ARTICLE VI TERMINATION

- A. Termination of Contract
 See Section 11 of the Professional Services Contract.
- B. Liable Amount
 The maximum amount for which the Governmen

The maximum amount for which the Government shall be liable if this contract is terminated is for only those costs uncured up to termination of contract.

ARTICLE VII COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- A. Consultant agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., shall be used to determine the cost allowability of individual items.
- B. Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 18, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments.
- C. Any costs for which payment has been made to Consultant that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 49 CFR Part 18 and 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., are subject to repayment by Consultant to the CITY.
- D. All subcontracts in excess of \$25,000 shall contain the above provisions.

ARTICLE VIII RETENTION OF RECORDS/AUDIT

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code 10115, et seq. and Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et seq., when

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

applicable and other matters connected with the performance of the contract pursuant to Government Code 8546.7; Consultant, subconsultants, and CITY shall maintain and make available for inspection all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of the contract, including but not limited to, the costs of administering the contract. All parties shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the contract period and for three years from the date of final payment under the contract. The state, State Auditor, CITY, FHWA, or any duly authorized representative of the Federal Government shall have access to any books, records, and documents of Consultant that are pertinent to the contract for audit, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested. Subcontracts in excess of \$25,000 shall contain this provision.

ARTICLE IX AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES

- A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an interim or post audit of this contract that is not disposed of by agreement, shall be reviewed by the CITY's Chief Financial Officer.
- B. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, Consultant may request a review by the CITY's Chief Financial Officer of unresolved audit issues. The request for review will be submitted in writing.
- C. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the CITY will excuse Consultant from full and timely performance, in accordance with the terms of this contract.
- D. For contracts totaling \$150,000 or greater, Consultant and subconsultants' contracts, including Scope of Services and indirect cost rates (ICR), are subject to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a Contract Audit, an Incurred Cost Audit, an ICR Audit, or a certified public accountant (CPA) ICR Audit Workpaper Review. If selected for audit or review, the contract, Scope of Services and ICR and related workpapers, if applicable, will be reviewed to verify compliance with 48 CFR, Part 31 and other related laws and regulations. In the instances of a CPA ICR Audit Workpaper Review it is Consultant's responsibility to ensure federal, state, or local government officials are allowed full access to the CPA's workpapers. The contract, Scope of Services, and ICR shall be adjusted by Consultant and approved by CITY project manager to conform to the audit or review recommendations. Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs identified in the audit report shall be incorporated into the contract by this reference if directed by the CITY at its sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations, or to ensure that the Federal, State, or local governments have access to CPA workpapers, will be considered a breach of contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of prior reimbursed costs.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

For contracts over \$3,500,000, the following section applies:

- E. Consultant Cost Proposal is subject to a CPA ICR Audit Work Paper Review by Caltrans' Audit and Investigation (Caltrans). Caltrans, at its sole discretion, may review and/or audit and approve the CPA ICR documentation. The Cost Proposal shall be adjusted by the Consultant and approved by the City Contract Administrator to conform to the Work Paper Review recommendations included in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit report. Refusal by the Consultant to incorporate the Work Paper Review recommendations included in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit report will be considered a breach of the contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of prior reimbursed costs.
 - 1. During a Caltrans' review of the ICR audit work papers created by the Consultant's independent CPA, Caltrans will work with the CPA and/or Consultant toward a resolution of issues that arise during the review. Each party agrees to use its best efforts to resolve any audit disputes in a timely manner. If Caltrans identifies significant issues during the review and is unable to issue a cognizant approval letter, the City will reimburse the Consultant at a provisional ICR until a FAR compliant ICR {e.g. 48CFR, part 31; GAGAS (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards); CAS (Cost Accounting Standards), if applicable; in accordance with procedures and guidelines of the American Association of State Highways and Transportation Officials Audit Guide; and other applicable procedures and guidelines} is received and approved by A&I. Provisional rates will be as follows:
 - a. If the proposed rated is less than 150% the provisional rate reimbursed will be 90% of the proposed rate.
 - b. If the proposed rate is between 150% and 200% the provisional rate will be 85% of the proposed rate.
 - c. If the proposed rate is greater than 200% the provisional rate will be 75% of the proposed rate.
 - 2. If Caltrans is unable to issue a cognizant letter per paragraph E.1. above, Caltrans may require Consultant to submit a revised independent CPA-audited ICR and audit report within three (3) months of the effective date of the management letter. Caltrans will then have up to six (6) months to review the Consultant's and/or the independent CPA's revisions.
 - 3. If the Consultant fails to comply with the provisions of this Section E, or if Caltrans is still unable to issue a cognizant approval letter after the revised independent CPA-audited ICR is submitted, overhead cost reimbursement will be limited to the provisional ICR that was established upon initial rejection of the ICR and set forth in paragraph E.1. above for all rendered services. In this event, this

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

provisional ICR will become the actual and final ICR for reimbursement purposes under this contract.

4. Consultant may submit to City final invoice only when all of the following items have occurred: (1) Caltrans approves or rejects the original or revised independent CPA-audited ICR; (2) all work under this contract has been completed to the satisfaction of City; and, (3) Caltrans has issued its final ICR review letter. The Consultant MUST SUBMIT ITS FINAL INVOICE TO City no later than 60 days after occurrence of the last of these items.

The provisional ICR will apply to this contract and all other contracts executed between City and the Consultant, either as a prime or subconsultant, with the same fiscal period ICR.

ARTICLE X SUBCONTRACTING

- A. Nothing contained in this contract or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation between City and any subconsultant(s), and no subcontract shall relieve Consultant of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Consultant agrees to be as fully responsible to City for the acts and omissions of its subconsultant(s) and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Consultant. Consultant's obligation to pay its subconsultant(s) is an independent obligation from City's obligation to make payments to the Consultant.
- B. Consultant shall perform the work contemplated with resources available within its own organization and no portion of the work pertinent to this contract shall be subcontracted without written authorization by City's Contract Administrator, except that, which is expressly identified in the approved Cost Proposal.
- C. Consultant shall pay its subconsultants within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of each payment made to Consultant by Local Agency.
- D. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000 entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all the provisions stipulated in this contract to be applicable to subconsultants.
- E. Any substitution of subconsultant(s) must be approved in writing by City's Contract Administrator prior to the start of work by the subconsultant(s).

ARTICLE XI EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

A. Prior authorization in writing, by the CITY's Project Manager shall be required before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract exceeding

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

\$5,000 for supplies, equipment, or Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of the necessity or desirability of incurring such costs.

- B. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in Consultant's Scope of Services and exceeding \$5,000 prior authorization by the CITY's Project Manager; three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the absence of bidding must be adequately justified.
- C. Any equipment purchased as a result of this contract is subject to the following: "Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property. Nonexpendable property is defined as having a useful life of at least two years and an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more. If the purchased equipment needs replacement and is sold or traded in, the CITY shall receive a proper refund or credit at the conclusion of the contract, or if the contract is terminated, Consultant may either keep the equipment and credit the CITY in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment at the best price obtainable at a public or private sale. in accordance with established CITY procedures; and credit the CITY in an amount equal to the sales price. If Consultant elects to keep the equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant's expense, on the basis of a competent independent appraisal of such equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from an appraiser mutually agreeable to by the CITY and Consultant, if it is determined to sell the equipment, the terms and conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by the CITY." 49 CFR, Part 18 requires a credit to Federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market value greater than \$5,000 is credited to the project.
- D. All subcontracts in excess \$25,000 shall contain the above provisions.

ARTICLE XII STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES

- A. Consultant shall comply with the State of California's General Prevailing Wage Rate requirements in accordance with California Labor Code, Section 1770, and all Federal, State, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work.
- B. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract if for more than \$25,000 for public works construction or more than \$15,000 for the alteration, demolition, repair, or maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.
- C. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the scope of work, transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates set by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing Wage Determination (see http://www.dir.ca.gov).

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XIII CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- A. Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with the CITY that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing CITY construction project. Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a financial interest in the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing CITY construction project, which will follow.
- B. Consultant hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it acquire any financial or business interest that would conflict with the performance of services under this contract.
- C. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000 entered into as a result of this contract, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.
- D. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with Consultant will bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract. An affiliated firm is one, which is subject to the control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or otherwise.
- E. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing surveying or materials testing information, no subconsultant who has provided design services in connection with this contract shall be eligible to bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract.
- F. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, its employees, nor any firm affiliated with Consultant providing services on this project prepared the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate for any construction project included within this contract. An affiliated firm is one which is subject to the control of the same persons through joint ownership or otherwise.
- G. Consultant further certifies that neither Consultant nor any firm affiliated with Consultant, will bid on any construction subcontracts included with Construction Contract. Additionally, Consultant certifies that no person working under this contract is also employed by the construction contractor for any project included within this contract.
- H. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to materials testing, no subconsultant who is providing service on this contract shall have provided services on the design of any project included within this contract.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XIV REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL CONSIDERATION

Consultant warrants that this contract was not obtained or secured through rebates kickbacks or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any CITY employee. For breach or violation of this warranty, the CITY shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the contract price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, kickback or other unlawful consideration.

ARTICLE XV PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING CITY, STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDS FOR LOBBYING (Applies only to contracts over \$150,000)

- A. Consultant certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:
 - 1. No state, federal or City appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid by-oron behalf of Consultant to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a Member of the State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of the Legislature or Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature or Congress, in connection with the awarding of any state or federal contract; the making of any state or federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state or federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
 - 2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; Consultant shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.
- B. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- C. Consultant also agrees by signing this document that he or she shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower-tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000, and that all such sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XVI STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

- A. Consultant's signature affixed herein, and dated, shall constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that Consultant has, unless exempt, complied with, the nondiscrimination program requirements of Government Code Section 12990 and Title 2, California Administrative Code, Section 8103.
- B. During the performance of this Contract, Consultant and its subconsultants shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability. medical condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Firm and subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Firm and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Firm and its subconsultants shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Contract.
- C. Consultant shall comply with regulations relative to Title VI (nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation- Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21- Effectuation of Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act). Title VI provides that the recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy of non-discrimination in which no person in the State of California shall, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, be excluded from participation under any program or activity by the recipients of federal assistance or their assignees and successors in interest.
- D. Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract shall act in accordance with Title VI. Specifically, Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, natural origin, religion, sex, age, or disability in the selection and retention of subconsultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination, prohibited by Section 21.5 of the US Department of Transportation's regulations, including employment practices with the contract covers a program whose goal is employment.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XVII DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

- A. Consultant's signature affixed herein, shall constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Consultant has complied with Title 2 CFR Part 180, "OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (nonprocurement)", which certifies that he/she or any person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by any federal agency within the past three (3) years; does not have a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be disclosed to the CITY.
- B. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of recommendation for award, but will be considered in determining Consultant responsibility. Disclosures must indicate to whom exceptions apply, initiating agency, and dates of action.
- C. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System maintained by the General Services Administration are to be determined by the Federal highway Administration.

ARTICLE XVIII FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

- A. It is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have been written before ascertaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed after that determination was made.
- B. This contract is valid and enforceable only, if sufficient funds are made available to the CITY for the purpose of this contract. In addition, this contract is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress, State Legislature, or the CITY governing board that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this contract in any manner.
- C. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this contract may be amended to reflect any reduction in funds.
- D. The CITY has the option to void the contract under the 30-day cancellation clause, or by mutual agreement to amend the contract to reflect any reduction of funds.

City Project No. WT22008 / Federal-Aid Project No. STPLR-7500(289)

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XIX CHANGE IN TERMS

- A. This contract may be amended or modified only by mutual written agreement of the parties.
- B. Consultant shall only commence work covered by a Contract Change Order after the Contract Change Order is executed and notification to proceed has been provided by the CITY's Project Manager.
- C. There shall be no change in Consultant's Project Manager or members of the project team, as listed in the approved Scope of Services, which is a part of this contract without prior written approval by the CITY's Project Manager.

ARTICLE XX DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) PARTICIPATION

- A. This contract is subject to 49 CFR, Part 26 entitled "Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs". Consultants who obtain DBE participation on this contract will assist Caltrans in meeting its federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal.
- B. The goal for DBE participation for this contract is <u>6%</u>. Participation by DBE consultant or subconsultants shall be in accordance with information contained in the Consultant Proposal DBE Commitment (Exhibit 10-O1), or in the Consultant Contract DBE Information (Exhibit 10-O2) attached hereto and incorporated as part of the Contract. If a DBE subconsultant is unable to perform, Consultant must make a good faith effort to replace him/her with another DBE subconsultant, if the goal is not otherwise met.
- C. DBEs and other small businesses, as defined in 49 CFR, Part 26 are encouraged to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds. Consultant or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Consultant shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR, Part 26 in the award and administration of US Department of Transportation-assisted agreements. Failure by Consultant to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as City deems appropriate.
- D. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the provisions of this section.
- E. A DBE firm may be terminated only with prior written approval from City and only for the reasons specified in 49 CFR 26.53(f). Prior to requesting City consent for the

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

termination, Consultant must meet the procedural requirements specified in 49 CFR 26.53(f).

- F. A DBE performs a Commercially Useful Function (CUF) when it is responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To perform a CUF, the DBE must also be responsible with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where applicable) and paying for the material itself. To determine whether a DBE is performing a CUF, evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is actually performing, and other relevant factors.
- G. A DBE does not perform a CUF if its role is limited to that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract or project through which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation. In determining whether a DBE is such an extra participant, examine similar transactions, particularly those in which DBEs do not participate.
- H. If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least thirty percent (30%) of the total cost of its contract with its own work force, or the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of the contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, it will be presumed that it is not performing a CUF.
- I. Consultant shall maintain records of materials purchased or supplied from all subcontracts entered into with certified DBEs. The records shall show the name and business address of each DBE or vendor and the total dollar amount actually paid each DBE or vendor, regardless of tier. The records shall show the date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to all firms. DBE prime consultants shall also show the date of work performed by their own forces along with the corresponding dollar value of the work.
- J. Upon completion of the contract, a summary of these records shall be prepared and submitted on the form entitled, "Final Report- Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), First-Tier Subconsultants" CEM-2402F [Exhibit 17-F, of the LAPM], certified correct by Consultant or Consultant's authorized representative and shall be furnished to the Contract Administrator with the final invoice. Failure to provide the summary of DBE payments with the final invoice will result in twenty-five percent (25%) of the dollar value of the invoice being withheld from payment until the form is submitted. The amount will be returned to Consultant when a satisfactory "Final Report- Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), First-Tier Subconsultants" is submitted to the Contract Administrator.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

K. If a DBE subconsultant is decertified during the life of the contract, the decertified subconsultant shall notify Consultant in writing with the date of decertification. If a subconsultant becomes a certified DBE during the life of the contract, the subconsultant shall notify Consultant in writing with the date of certification. Any changes should be report to City's Contract Administrator within 30 days.

ARTICLE XXI CONTINGENT FEE

Consultant warrants, by execution of this contract that no person or selling agency has been employed, or retained, to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding, for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees, or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by Consultant for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, CITY has the right to annul this contract without liability; pay only for the value of the work actually performed, or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

ARTICLE XXII DISPUTES

- A. Any dispute, other than audit, concerning a question of fact arising under this contract that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by a committee consisting of the CITY's Project Manager and Public Works Director, who may consider written or verbal information submitted by Consultant.
- B. Not later than 30 days after completion of all work, including deliverables necessary to complete the plan, specifications, and estimate, if applicable, under the contract, Consultant may request review by the CITY Governing Board of unresolved claims or disputes, other than audit. The request for review will be submitted in writing.
- C. Neither the pendency of a dispute, nor its consideration by the committee will excuse Consultant from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this contract.

ARTICLE XXIII INSPECTION OF WORK

Consultant and any subconsultant shall permit the CITY, the state, and the FHWA if federal participating funds are used in this contract; to review and inspect the project activities and files at all reasonable times during the performance period of this contract including review and inspection on a daily basis.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

ARTICLE XXIV SAFETY

- A. Consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to Consultant regarding necessary safety equipment or procedures. Consultant shall comply with safety instructions issued by the CITY Safety Officer and other CITY representatives. Consultant personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests at all times while working on the construction project site.
- B. Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the CITY has determined that such areas are within the limits of the project and are open to public traffic. Consultant shall comply with all of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the Vehicle Code. Consultant shall take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its vehicles and the protection of the traveling public from injury and damage from such vehicles.
- C. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.
- D. Consultant must have a Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CAL-OSHA) permit(s), as outlined in California Labor Code Sections 6500 and 6705, prior to the initiation of any practices, work, method, operation, or process related to the construction or excavation of trenches which are five feet or deeper.

ARTICLE XXV INSURANCE

See Section 3 of the Professional Services Contract.

ARTICLE XXVI OWNERSHIP OF DATA

- A. Upon completion of all work under this contract, ownership and title to all reports, documents, plans, specifications, and estimates produce as part of this contract will automatically be vested in the CITY; and no further contract will be necessary to transfer ownership to the CITY. Consultant shall furnish the CITY all necessary copies of data needed to complete the review and approval process.
- B. It is understood and agreed that all calculations, drawings and specifications, whether in hard copy or machine-readable form, are intended for one-time use in the construction of the project for which this contract has been entered into.
- C. Consultant is not liable for claims, liabilities, or losses arising out of, or connected with the modification, or misuse by the CITY of the machine-readable information and data provided by Consultant under this contract; further, Consultant is not liable for claims, liabilities, or losses arising out of, or connected with any use by the CITY of the project documentation on other projects for additions to this project, or for the

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

completion of this project by others, except only such use as many be authorized in writing by Consultant.

- D. Applicable patent rights provisions regarding rights to inventions shall be included in the contracts as appropriate (48 CFR 27, Subpart 27.3 Patent Rights under Government Contracts for federal-aid contracts).
- E. The CITY may permit copyrighting reports or other contract products. If copyrights are permitted; the contract shall provide that the FHWA shall have the royalty-free nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use; and to authorize others to use, the work for government purposes.
- F. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000 entered into as a result of this contract, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE XXVII CLAIMS FILED BY THE CITY'S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR

- A. If claims are filed by the CITY's construction contractor relating to work performed by Consultant's personnel, and additional information or assistance from Consultant's personnel is required in order to evaluate or defend against such claims; Consultant agrees to make its personnel available for consultation with the CITY's construction contract administration and legal staff and for testimony, if necessary, at depositions and at trial or arbitration proceedings.
- B. Consultant's personnel that the CITY considers essential to assist in defending against construction contractor claims will be made available on reasonable notice from the CITY. Consultation or testimony will be reimbursed at the same rates, including travel costs that are being paid for Consultant's personnel services under this contract.
- C. Services of Consultant's personnel in connection with the CITY's construction contractor claims will be performed pursuant to a written contract amendment, if necessary, extending the termination date of this contract in order to resolve the construction claims.
- D. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000 entered into as a result of this contract, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE XXVIII CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA

A. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and information relative to the CITY's operations, which are designated confidential by the CITY and made available to Consultant in order to carry out this contract, shall be protected by Consultant from unauthorized use and disclosure.

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

- B. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or public hearing held by the CITY relating to the contract, shall not authorize Consultant to further disclose such information, or disseminate the same on any other occasion.
- C. Consultant shall not comment publicly to the press or any other media regarding the contract or the CITY's actions on the same, except to CITY's staff, Consultant's own personnel involved in the performance of this contract, at public hearings or in response to questions from a Legislative committee.
- D. Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature, whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without prior review of the contents thereof by the CITY, and receipt of the CITY's written permission.
- E. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the provisions of this Article.
- F. As it relates to the preparation of plans, specifications and estimates, if applicable: All information related to the construction estimate is confidential, and shall not be disclosed by Consultant to any entity other than the CITY.

ARTICLE XXIX NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10296, Consultant hereby states under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been issued against Consultant within the immediately preceding two-year period, because of Consultant's failure to comply with an order of a federal court that orders Consultant to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.

ARTICLE XXX EVALUATION OF CONSULTANT

Consultant's performance will be evaluated by the CITY. A copy of the evaluation will be sent to Consultant for comments. The evaluation together with the comments shall be retained as part of the contract record.

ARTICLE XXXI RETENTION OF FUNDS

- A. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Contract shall contain all of the provisions of this section.
- B. No retainage will be withheld by the City from progress payments due the prime consultant. Retainage by the prime consultant or subconsultants is prohibited, and

This form shall be physically attached to Professional Services Contract

no retainage will be held by the prime consultant from progress due subconsultants. Any violation of this provision shall subject the violating prime consultant or subconsultants to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the prime consultant or subconsultant in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime consultant or deficient subconsultant performance, or noncompliance by a subconsultant. This porovision applies to both DBE and non-DBE prime consultants and subconsultants.

ARTICLE XXXII NOTIFICATION

See Section 15- Notices of the Professional Services Contract.

ARTICLE XXXIII CONTRACT

Refer to the Professional Services Contract.

ARTICLE XXXIV SIGNATURES

Refer to the Professional Services Contract.

EXHIBIT 10-I NOTICE TO PROPOSERS DBE INFORMATION

(Federally funded projects only)

The Agency has established a DBE goal for this Contract of	
--	--

1. TERMS AS USED IN THIS DOCUMENT

- The term "Disadvantaged Business Enterprise" or "DBE" means a for-profit small business concern owned and controlled by a socially and economically disadvantaged person(s) as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 26.5.
- The term "Agreement" also means "Contract."
- Agency also means the local entity entering into this contract with the Contractor or Consultant.
- The term "Small Business" or "SB" is as defined in 49 CFR 26.65.

2. AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY

- A. DBEs and other small businesses are strongly encouraged to participate in the performance of Contracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds (See 49 CFR 26, "Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs"). The Consultant must ensure that DBEs and other small businesses have the opportunity to participate in the performance of the work that is the subject of this solicitation and should take all necessary and reasonable steps for this assurance. The proposer must not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of subcontracts.
- Proposers are encouraged to use services offered by financial institutions owned and controlled by DBEs.

3. SUBMISSION OF DBE INFORMATION

If there is a DBE goal on the contract, Exhibit 10-O1 *Consultant Proposal DBE Commitment* must be included in the Proposal. In order for a proposer to be considered responsible and responsive, the proposer must make good faith efforts to meet the goal established for the contract. If the goal is not met, the proposer must document adequate good faith efforts. All DBE participation will be counted towards meeting the contract goal; therefore, all DBE participation shall be collected and reported.

Exhibit 10-O2 Consultant Contract DBE Information must be included in best qualified consultant's executed consultant contract. Even if no DBE participation will be reported, the successful proposer must execute and return the form.

4. DBE PARTICIPATION GENERAL INFORMATION

It is the proposer's responsibility to be fully informed regarding the requirements of 49 CFR, Part 26, and the Department's DBE program developed pursuant to the regulations. Particular attention is directed to the following:

- A. A DBE must be a small business firm defined pursuant to 13 CFR 121 and be certified through the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP).
- B. A certified DBE may participate as a prime consultant, subconsultant, joint venture partner, as a vendor of material or supplies, or as a trucking company.
- C. A DBE proposer not proposing as a joint venture with a non-DBE, will be required to document one or a combination of the following:
 - 1. The proposer is a DBE and will meet the goal by performing work with its own forces.
 - 2. The proposer will meet the goal through work performed by DBE subconsultants, suppliers or trucking companies.
 - 3. The proposer, prior to proposing, made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal.

- D. A DBE joint venture partner must be responsible for specific contract items of work or clearly defined portions thereof. Responsibility means actually performing, managing, and supervising the work with its own forces. The DBE joint venture partner must share in the capital contribution, control, management, risks and profits of the joint venture commensurate with its ownership interest.
- E. A DBE must perform a commercially useful function pursuant to 49 CFR 26.55, that is, a DBE firm must be responsible for the execution of a distinct element of the work and must carry out its responsibility by actually performing, managing and supervising the work.
- F. The proposer shall list only one subconsultant for each portion of work as defined in their proposal and all DBE subconsultants should be listed in the bid/cost proposal list of subconsultants.
- G. A prime consultant who is a certified DBE is eligible to claim all of the work in the Contract toward the DBE participation except that portion of the work to be performed by non-DBE subconsultants.

5. RESOURCES

- A. The CUCP database includes the certified DBEs from all certifying agencies participating in the CUCP. If you believe a firm is certified that cannot be located on the database, please contact the Caltrans Office of Certification toll free number 1-866-810-6346 for assistance.
- B. Access the CUCP database from the Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights website
 - 1. Click on the link titled Disadvantaged Business Enterprise;
 - 2. Click on Search for a DBE Firm link;
 - 3. Click on Access to the DBE Query Form located on the first line in the center of the page.

Searches can be performed by one or more criteria. Follow instructions on the screen.

6. MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES PURCHASED FROM DBES COUNT TOWARDS THE DBE GOAL UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

- A. If the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer, count 100 percent of the cost of the materials or supplies. A DBE manufacturer is a firm that operates or maintains a factory, or establishment that produces on the premises the materials, supplies, articles, or equipment required under the Contract and of the general character described by the specifications.
- B. If the materials or supplies purchased from a DBE regular dealer, count 60 percent of the cost of the materials or supplies. A DBE regular dealer is a firm that owns, operates or maintains a store, warehouse, or other establishment in which the materials, supplies, articles or equipment of the general character described by the specifications and required under the Contract are bought, kept in stock, and regularly sold or leased to the public in the usual course of business. To be a DBE regular dealer, the firm must be an established, regular business that engages, as its principal business and under its own name, in the purchase and sale or lease of the products in question. A person may be a DBE regular dealer in such bulk items as petroleum products, steel, cement, gravel, stone or asphalt without owning, operating or maintaining a place of business provided in this section.
- C. If the person both owns and operates distribution equipment for the products, any supplementing of regular dealers' own distribution equipment shall be, by a long-term lease agreement and not an ad hoc or Agreement-by-Agreement basis. Packagers, brokers, manufacturers' representatives, or other persons who arrange or expedite transactions are not DBE regular dealers within the meaning of this section.
- D. Materials or supplies purchased from a DBE, which is neither a manufacturer nor a regular dealer, will be limited to the entire amount of fees or commissions charged for assistance in the procurement of the materials and supplies, or fees or transportation charges for the delivery of materials or supplies required on the job site, provided the fees are reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees charged for similar services.

EXHIBIT 10-K CONSULTANT ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF INDIRECT COSTS AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

(Note: If a Safe Harbor Indirect Cost Rate is approved, this form is not required.)

Consultant's Full Legal Name:	
services as a party of a contract with	dividual or consultant providing engineering and design related a recipient or sub-recipient of Federal assistance. Therefore, the abined with its parent company or subsidiaries.
Indirect Cost Rate:	
Combined Rate	_ % OR
Home Office Rate	_% and Field Office Rate (if applicable)%
Facilities Capital Cost of Money	_% (if applicable)
Fiscal period *	

* Fiscal period is annual one year applicable accounting period that the Indirect Cost Rate was developed (not the contract period). The Indirect Cost Rate is based on the consultant's one-year applicable accounting period for which financial statements are regularly prepared by the consultant.

I have reviewed the proposal to establish an Indirect Cost Rate(s) for the **fiscal period** as specified above and have determined to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

- All costs included in the cost proposal to establish the indirect cost rate(s) are allowable in accordance with the cost principles of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) 48, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Chapter 1, Part 31 (48 CFR Part 31);
- The cost proposal does not include any costs which are expressly unallowable under the cost principles of 48 CFR Part 31;
- The accounting treatment and billing of prevailing wage delta costs are consistent with our
 prevailing wage policy as either direct labor, indirect costs, or other direct costs on all federallyfunded A&E Consultant Contracts.
- All known material transactions or events that have occurred subsequent to year-end affecting the
 consultant's ownership, organization, and indirect cost rates have been disclosed as of the date of
 this certification.

I am providing the required and applicable documents as instructed on Exhibit 10-A.

Financial Management System:

Our labor charging, job costing, and accounting systems meet the standards for financial reporting, accounting records, and internal control adequate to demonstrate that costs claimed have been incurred, appropriately accounted for, are allocable to the contract, and comply with the federal requirements as set forth in Title 23
United States Code (U.S.C.) Section 112(b)(2); 48 CFR Part 31.201-2(d); 23 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 172.11(a)(2); and all applicable state and federal rules and regulations.

Our financial management system has the following attributes:

- Account numbers identifying allowable direct, indirect, and unallowable cost accounts;
- Ability to accumulate and segregate allowable direct, indirect, and unallowable costs into separate cost

accounts;

- Ability to accumulate and segregate allowable direct costs by project, contract and type of cost;
- Internal controls to maintain integrity of financial management system;
- Ability to account and record costs consistently and to ensure costs billed are in compliance with FAR;
- Ability to ensure and demonstrate costs billed reconcile to general ledgers and job costing system; and
- Ability to ensure costs are in compliance with contract terms and federal and state requirement

Cost Reimbursements on Contracts:

I also understand that failure to comply with 48 CFR Part 16.301-3 or knowingly charge unallowable costs to Federal-Aid Highway Program (FAHP) contracts may result in possible penalties and sanctions as provided by the following:

- Sanctions and Penalties 23 CFR Part 172.11(c)(4)
- False Claims Act Title 31 U.S.C. Sections 3729-3733
- Statements or entries generally <u>Title 18 U.S.C. Section 1001</u>
- Major Fraud Act Title 18 U.S.C. Section 1031

 Total participation amount \$ 	on all State and FAHP contracts for Architectural &	
Engineering services that the consulta	int received in the last three fiscal periods.	
 The number of states in which the cor 	nsultant does business is	
 Years of consultant's experience with 	48 CFR Part 31 is	
 Audit history of the consultant's curre Cognizant ICR Audit 		
☐ CPA ICR Audit	☐ Federal Gov't ICR Audit	
Indirect Cost Rate Schedule to determine that	ne best of my knowledge and belief and that I have reviewed the any costs which are expressly unallowable under the Federal cost h <u>Title 23 U.S.C. Section 112(b)(2)</u> , <u>48 CFR Part 31</u> , <u>23 CFR Part 172</u> , and letions. I also cortify that Lundarstand that all documentation of	1
compliance must be retained by the consultant federal and state requirements are not eligible	t. I hereby acknowledge that costs that are noncompliant with the for reimbursement and must be returned to Caltrans.	•
compliance must be retained by the consultant	t. I hereby acknowledge that costs that are noncompliant with the for reimbursement and must be returned to Caltrans.	_
compliance must be retained by the consultant federal and state requirements are not eligible	t. I hereby acknowledge that costs that are noncompliant with the for reimbursement and must be returned to Caltrans. Title**:	
compliance must be retained by the consultant federal and state requirements are not eligible Name**:	t. I hereby acknowledge that costs that are noncompliant with the for reimbursement and must be returned to Caltrans. Title**: Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyyy):	

Note: Both prime and subconsultants as parties of a contract must complete their own Exhibit 10-K forms. Caltrans will not process local agency's invoices until a complete Exhibit 10-K form is accepted and approved by Caltrans Audits and Investigations.

Distribution: 1) Original - Local Agency Project File

2) Copy - Consultant

3) Copy - Caltrans Audits and Investigations

EXHIBIT 10-O1 CONSULTANT PROPOSAL DBE COMMITMENT

1. Local Agency:		2. Contract DBE Goal:		
3. Project Description:				
4. Project Location:				
5. Consultant's Name:			6. Prime Certi	fied DBE: □
7. Description of Work, Service, or Materials Supplied	8. DBE Certification Number	9. DBE Contact Information	on	10. DBE %
Local Agency to Complete this	Section			
17. Local Agency Contract Number:	•	11. TOTAL CLAIMED DBE PARTICIPATION		%
18. Federal-Aid Project Number:				/6
Consultant's Ranking after Evaluation:		IMPORTANT: Identify all DBE firms	haing alaimad f	For gradit
Local Agency certifies that all DBE certifications are valid and information on this form is complete and accurate.		regardless of tier. Written confirmation required.	on of each listed	d DBE is
21. Local Agency Representative's Signature	22. Date	12. Preparer's Signature	13. Date	
23. Local Agency Representative's Name	24. Phone	14. Preparer's Name	15. Phone	
25. Local Agency Representative's Title		16. Preparer's Title	_	

DISTRIBUTION: Original – Included with consultant's proposal to local agency.

ADA Notice: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information call (916) 654-6410 or TDD (916) 654-3880 or write Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS – CONSULTANT PROPOSAL DBE COMMITMENT

CONSULTANT SECTION

- 1. Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- 2. Contract DBE Goal Enter the contract DBE goal percentage as it appears on the project advertisement.
- 3. Project Location Enter the project location as it appears on the project advertisement.
- 4. Project Description Enter the project description as it appears on the project advertisement (Bridge Rehab, Seismic Rehab, Overlay, Widening, etc.).
- **5. Consultant's Name** Enter the consultant's firm name.
- **6. Prime Certified DBE** Check box if prime contractor is a certified DBE.
- 7. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied Enter description of work, services, or materials to be provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime consultant's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- 8. DBE Certification Number Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. All DBEs must be certified on the date bids are opened.
- **9. DBE Contact Information** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted consultants. Also, enter the prime consultant's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- 10. DBE % Percent participation of work to be performed or service provided by a DBE. Include the prime consultant if the prime is a DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 for how to count full/partial participation.
- 11. Total Claimed DBE Participation % Enter the total DBE participation claimed. If the total % claimed is less than item "Contract DBE Goal," an adequately documented Good Faith Effort (GFE) is required (see Exhibit 15-H DBE Information - Good Faith Efforts of the LAPM).
- 12. Preparer's Signature The person completing the DBE commitment form on behalf of the consultant's firm must sign their name.
- 13. Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the consultant's preparer.
- 14. Preparer's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- 15. Phone Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- 16. Preparer's Title Enter the position/title of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.

LOCAL AGENCY SECTION

- 17. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **18. Federal-Aid Project Number** Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- 19. Proposed Contract Execution Date Enter the proposed contract execution date.
- **20. Consultant's Ranking after Evaluation** Enter consultant's ranking after all submittals/consultants are evaluated. Use this as a quick comparison for evaluating most qualified consultant.
- 21. Local Agency Representative's Signature The person completing this section of the form for the Local Agency must sign their name to certify that the information in this and the Consultant Section of this form is complete and accurate.
- **22. Date** Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.
- 23. Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative certifying the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- **24. Phone** Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- 25. Local Agency Representative Title Enter the position/title of the Local Agency Representative certifying the consultant's DBE commitment form.

LPP 18-01 Page 2 of 2

EXHIBIT 10-O2 CONSULTANT CONTRACT DBE COMMITMENT

1. Local Agency:		2. Contract DBE Goal:		
3. Project Description:				
4. Project Location:				
5. Consultant's Name:				
8. Total Dollar Amount for <u>ALL</u> Subconsultants:		9. Total Number of <u>ALL</u> Subconsultants:		
10. Description of Work, Service, or Materials Supplied 11. DBE Certification Number		12. DBE Contact Information	13. DBE Dollar Amount	
Local Agency to Complete this Section		\$		
20. Local Agency Contract		14. TOTAL CLAIMED DBE PARTICIPATION	·	
21. Federal-Aid Project Number: 22. Contract Execution Date:			%	
Local Agency certifies that all DBE certifications are valid and information on this form is complete and accurate.		IMPORTANT: Identify all DBE firms being clair regardless of tier. Written confirmation of each required.	ned for credit, listed DBE is	
23. Local Agency Representative's Signature 24. Date		15. Preparer's Signature 16. Di	ate	
25. Local Agency Representative's Name 26. Phone		17. Preparer's Name 18. Pl	none	
27. Local Agency Representative's Title		19. Preparer's Title		

DISTRIBUTION: 1. Original – Local Agency
2. Copy – Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer (DLAE). Failure to submit to DLAE within 30 days of contract execution may result in de-obligation of federal funds on contract.

ADA Notice: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information call (916) 654-6410 or TDD (916) 654-3880 or write Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS – CONSULTANT CONTRACT DBE COMMITMENT

CONSULTANT SECTION

- 1. Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- 2. Contract DBE Goal Enter the contract DBE goal percentage as it appears on the project advertisement.
- **3. Project Description** Enter the project description as it appears on the project advertisement (Bridge Rehab, Seismic Rehab, Overlay, Widening, etc).
- **4. Project Location** Enter the project location as it appears on the project advertisement.
- 5. Consultant's Name Enter the consultant's firm name.
- **6. Prime Certified DBE** Check box if prime contractor is a certified DBE.
- 7. Total Contract Award Amount Enter the total contract award dollar amount for the prime consultant.
- **8. Total Dollar Amount for <u>ALL</u> Subconsultants** Enter the total dollar amount for all subcontracted consultants. SUM = (DBEs + all Non-DBEs). Do not include the prime consultant information in this count.
- **9. Total number of ALL subconsultants** Enter the total number of all subcontracted consultants. SUM = (DBEs + all Non-DBEs). Do not include the prime consultant information in this count.
- **10. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied** Enter description of work, services, or materials to be provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime consultant's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- **11. DBE Certification Number** Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. All DBEs must be certified on the date bids are opened.
- **12. DBE Contact Information** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted consultants. Also, enter the prime consultant's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- **13. DBE Dollar Amount** Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work to be performed or service to be provided. Include the prime consultant if the prime is a DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 for how to count full/partial participation.
- **14. Total Claimed DBE Participation** \$: Enter the total dollar amounts entered in the "DBE Dollar Amount" column. %: Enter the total DBE participation claimed ("Total Participation Dollars Claimed" divided by item "Total Contract Award Amount"). If the total % claimed is less than item "Contract DBE Goal," an adequately documented Good Faith Effort (GFE) is required (see Exhibit 15-H DBE Information Good Faith Efforts of the LAPM).
- **15. Preparer's Signature** The person completing the DBE commitment form on behalf of the consultant's firm must sign their name.
- **16. Date** Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the consultant's preparer.
- 17. Preparer's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- 18. Phone Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- 19. Preparer's Title Enter the position/title of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.

LOCAL AGENCY SECTION

- **20. Local Agency Contract Number** Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **21. Federal-Aid Project Number** Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- **22.** Contract Execution Date Enter the date the contract was executed.
- **23.** Local Agency Representative's Signature The person completing this section of the form for the Local Agency must sign their name to certify that the information in this and the Consultant Section of this form is complete and accurate.
- 24. Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.
- **25.** Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative certifying the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- **26. Phone** Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the consultant's DBE commitment form.
- **27.** Local Agency Representative Title Enter the position/title of the Local Agency Representative certifying the consultant's DBE commitment form.

EXHIBIT 10-Q DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

COMPLETE THIS FORM TO DISCLOSE LOBBYING ACTIVITIES PURSUANT TO 31 U.S.C. 1352

1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of F	Gederal Action: 3. Report Type:				
a. contract b. grant c. cooperative agreement d. loan e. loan guarantee f. loan insurance a. bid/offer/a b. initial awa c. post-award c. post-award c. post-award	b. material change				
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity Prime Subawardee Tier, if known	5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name and Address of Prime:				
Congressional District, if known	Congressional District, if known				
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Program Name/Description:				
	CFDA Number, if applicable				
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amount, if known:				
10. Name and Address of Lobby Entity (If individual, last name, first name, MI)	11. Individuals Performing Services (including address if different from No. 10) (last name, first name, MI)				
(attach Continuation Sheet(s) if necessary)					
12. Amount of Payment (check all that apply) 14. Type of Payment (check all that apply)					
\$ actual planned 13. Form of Payment (check all that apply): a. cash b. in-kind; specify: nature Value	a. retainer b. one-time fee c. commission d. contingent fee e deferred f. other, specify				
15. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 12:					
(attach Continuation	on Sheet(s) if necessary)				
16. Continuation Sheet(s) attached: Yes	No				
17. Information requested through this form is authorized by Title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying reliance was placed by the tier above when his transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to Congress semiannually and will be available for public inspection. Any	Signature: Print Name: Title:				
person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.	Telephone No.: Date:				
	Authorized for Local Reproduction				
Federal Use Only:	Standard Form - LLL				

Distribution: Orig- Local Agency Project Files

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING EXHIBIT 10-Q DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime federal recipient at the initiation or receipt of covered federal action or a material change to previous filing pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. The filing of a form is required for such payment or agreement to make payment to lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered federal action. Attach a continuation sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered federal action for which lobbying activity is or has been secured to influence, the outcome of a covered federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last, previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is or expects to be a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the first tier. Subawards include but are not limited to: subcontracts, subgrants, and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in Item 4 checks "Subawardee" then enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the prime federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organization level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the federal program name or description for the covered federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate federal identifying number available for the federal action identification in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number, grant announcement number, the contract grant or loan award number, the application/proposal control number assigned by the federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the federal amount of the award/loan commitments for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- 10. Enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in Item 4 to influence the covered federal action.
- 11. Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name and Middle Initial (MI).
- 12. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (Item 4) to the lobbying entity (Item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 13. Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 14. Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 15. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed or will be expected to perform and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity not just time spent in actual contact with federal officials. Identify the federal officer(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s) employee(s) or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- **16.** Check whether or not a continuation sheet(s) is attached.
- 17. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, and print his/her name title and telephone number.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30-minutes per response, including time for reviewing instruction, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, D.C. 20503. SF-LLL-Instructions Rev. 06-04

EXHIBIT 10-U CONSULTANT IN MANAGEMENT SUPPORT ROLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT¹

RF	P/R]	FQ PROCUREMENT NUMBERS (if applicable):
PR	OJE	CT NAME (and FPN, if applicable) ² :
AP	PLI	CABILITY: To be filled out by local agency consultants in management support role.
	pro	an employee of a consultant under contract to the local agency that is responsible for the curing and administering of one or more consultant contracts containing either Federal or te funds.
		m in a management position with the local agency, my title is listed below and I have ached my duty statement and scope of work.
	I he	ereby certify as follows:
	1.	I recuse myself from all potential conflicts of interest.
	2.	I will not directly or indirectly participate in, manage, or oversee any consultant selection procurement process in which the consulting firm of which I am employed is competing as a consultant or subconsultant.
	3.	I will not directly or indirectly influence any employee, staff member, or other individual participating in any consultant selection procurement process in which the consulting firm of which I am employed is as a consultant or subconsultant.
	4.	I will not directly or indirectly participate in, manage, or oversee any local agency contract that is with the consulting firm of which I am employed, regardless of whether the involvement of my employer in the contract is as a consultant or subconsultant. Among other things, this includes my not being involved in approving changes in the schedule, scope, deliverables or invoices.
	5.	I understand that if I am involved in any local agency contract that is with the consulting firm of which I am employed, in violation of 1. or 2. above, that local agency contract will no longer be eligible for Federal or State reimbursement because of my involvement.
	I ce	ertify that I have read and understand my responsibilities per 23 CFR 172.7(b)(5)
	age	ally understand that it is unlawful for a person to utilize any organization name (i.e. local ency) or auxiliary organization information, which is not a matter of public record, for sonal gain.

 $^{^1}$ Each consultant staff working in a management support role shall complete a separate form. 2 For on-call contracts or contracts for multiple projects, indicate accordingly.

	☐ I have read and fully understand all of the above.				
Da	te: Signature:				
	Name:				
	Title:				
	Consultant Firm/Sole Proprietor:				
<u>R</u>	REVIEWED BY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OR AUTHORIZED LOCAL AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE				
I ha	ave reviewed the foregoing "Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Statement" and will ensure:				
	That the foregoing named local agency consultant who is under contract and in a management support role with our local agency, abides by the foregoing terms and conditions;				
	☐ That should the foregoing named local agency consultant, who is under contract and in a management support role with our local agency, violate any of the foregoing terms and conditions, the Caltrans DLAE will be notified and such violation will be considered a breach of ethics and could be a basis for ineligibility of State or Federal project funds.				
	The procedures followed to procure and execute the contract, between the local agency and the consulting firm of which I am employed, comply with all federal and state requirements. Also this contract has a specific date from to				
Da	te: Signature:				
	Name:				
	Title:				
	Department/Local Agency:				

REVIEWED/CONCURRENCE BY FEDERAL HIGHWAYS

	ave reviewed the foregoing "Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Statement" and pervisor's statement.			
	I concur that the consultant, who is under contract and in a management support role with the local agency, does not appear to present a conflict of interest. The local agency and the consultant should be considered eligible for federal reimbursement.			
	I do not concur as I believe that the consultant, who is under contract and in a management support role with the local agency, does appear to present a conflict of interest.			
Da	te: Signature:			
	Name:			
	Position:			

Distribution:

1) Copy to: DLAE for each Federal/State funded project
2) Copy to be returned to Local Agency by DLAE with FHWA approval

Exhibit 12-B: Bidder's List of Subcontractor (DBE and Non-DBE) - Part 1

As of March 1, 2015 Contractors (and sub-contractors) wishing to bid on public works contracts must be registered with the State Division of Industrial Relations and certified to bid on Public Works contracts. Please register at https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Contractor-Registration.html. The local agency will verify registration of all contractors and subcontractors on public works projects at bid and thereafter annually to assure that yearly registration is maintained throughout the life of the project.

In accordance with Title 49, Section 26.11 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, as amended, the following information is required for each sub-contractor who will perform work amounting to more than one half of one percent (0.5%) of the Total Base Bid or \$10,000 (whichever is greater).

Photocopy this form for additional firms.	
---	--

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER:

Subcontractor Name & Location	Line Item & Description	Subcontract Amount	Percentage of Bid Item Subcontracted	Contractor License Number	DBE (Y/N)	DBE Cert Number	Annual G	ross Receipt
			Cubcontracted	DIR Reg Number				
NAME								million
								million) million
City, State								million
Oily, Claic							Age of F	
							yea	rs
NAME								million
								million
27. 01.1								million
City, State								million
							Age of F yea	rm in
NAME								million
								million
							< \$10) million
City, State							< \$15	million
							Age of F yea	irm in rs
NAME							< \$1 ı	million
								million
) million
City, State								million
							Age of F yea	irm in
NAME								million
IVAIVIE								million
								million
City, State					1			million
							Age of F yea	irm in
NAME								million
IVAIVIE								million
) million
City, State								million
							Age of F yea	irm in
NAME								million
W. W. E.								million
) million
City, State								million
							Age of F yea	irm in
NAME								million
								million
							< \$10) million
City, State							< \$15	million
							Age of F yea	irm in
NAME								million
1 47 MVI	1							million
) million
City, State							< \$15	million
							Age of F	irm in
		I	Ī	I			yea	rs

Distribution - Original: Local Agency File; Copy: DLAE w/Award Package

Exhibit 12-B: Bidder's List of Subcontractor (DBE and Non-DBE) - Part 2

In accordance with Title 49, Section 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations, the Bidder shall list all subcontractors who provided a quote or bid but were not selected to participate as a subcontractor on this project.

Photocopy this form for additional firms.

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER:

Subcontractor Name & Location	Line Item & Description	Amount Bid Item		Contractor License Number	DBE (Y/N)	DBE Cert Number	Annual Gross Receipt	
			Subcontracted	DIR Reg Number				
IAME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
ity, State							< \$10 million < \$15 million	
ity, State							Age of Firm in	
							years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ity, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ty, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
_							< \$10 million	
ity, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ity, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ity, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ty, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ty, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
AME							< \$1 million	
/ NYIL							< \$5 million	
							< \$10 million	
ity, State							< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	

Distribution - Original: Local Agency File; Copy: DLAE w/Award Package

EXHIBIT 15-H: PROPOSER/CONTRACTOR GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

		Cost Proposal Due Date	PE/CE
	Federal-aid Project No(s).	Bid Opening Date	CON
	es for this contract. The information provice contract goal.	tablished a Disadvantaged Business Enterpr Ted herein shows the required good faith effo	ise (DBE) goal of irts to meet or exceed
days fro following Constru protects the bidd	om cost proposal due date or bid opening information even if the Exhibit 10-O1: ction Contract DBE Commitment indicate the proposer's or bidder's eligibility for	mation to document their good faith efforts way. Proposers and bidders are recommended Consultant Proposal DBE Commitments or lete that the proposer or bidder has met the Diaward of the contract if the administering agasons, e.g., a DBE firm was not certified at b	to submit the Exhibit 15-G: BE goal. This form ency determines that
	owing items are listed in the Section en attach additional sheets as needed:	titled "Submission of DBE Commitment" of th	e Special Provisions,
	•	on in which a request for DBE participation for attach copies of advertisements or proofs	
	Publications	Dates of A	Advertisement
	the dates and methods used for followi DBEs were interested (please attach of	s sent to certified DBEs soliciting bids for this ng up initial solicitations to determine with ceopies of solicitations, telephone records, fax sitial Solicitation Follow Up Methods and	ertainty whether the confirmations, etc.):

C.	C. The items of work made available to DBE firms including those unbundled contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. It is the bidder's responsibility to demonstrate that sufficient work to facilitate DBE participation in order to meet or exceed the DBE contract goal.									
	Items of Work	Proposer or Bidder Normally Performs Item (Y/N)	Breakdown of Items	Amount (\$)	Percentage Of Contract					
D.	rejection of the	ddresses and phone numbers e DBEs, the firms selected for the price difference for each	that work (please att	tach copies of	quotes from the firms					
	Names, addre	esses and phone numbers of r	ejected DBEs and the	e reasons for t	he bidder's rejection of					

Names, addresses and phone numbers of firms selected for the work above:

E. Efforts (e.g. in advertisements and solicitations) made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining information related to the plans, specifications and requirements for the work which was provided to DBEs:

F.	Efforts (e.g. in advertisements and solid bonding, lines of credit or insurance, ne services, excluding supplies and equipricontractor or its affiliate:	ecessary equipment, supplies, materials	s, or related assistance or					
G.	G. The names of agencies, organizations or groups contacted to provide assistance in contacting, recruiting and using DBE firms (please attach copies of requests to agencies and any responses received, i.e., lists, Internet page download, etc.):							
	Name of Agency/Organization	Method/Date of Contact	Results					

H. Any additional data to support a demonstration of good faith efforts:

EXHIBIT 17-F FINAL REPORT-UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

1. Local Age	ncy Contract Number	2. Federal-Aid	d Project Number	Local Agency	,			4. Contract Co	mpletion Date
5. Contractor	/Consultant		6. Business Address				7. Final Conti	act Amount	
8. Contract	9. Description of Work, Servi	ce, or	10. Company Name and	d 11. DBE		12. Contract Payments		13. Date Work	14. Date of
Item Number	Materials Supplied		Business Address		Certification Number	Non-DBE	DBE	Completed	Final Payment
15. ORIGINA	AL DBE COMMITMENT AMOUNT	\$	<u></u>		16. TOTAL				
		ctual amount paid	er whether or not the firms were originally to each entity. If no subcontractors/subc	onsultants were use	ed on the contract, inc		rk) was different t	han that approved a	at the time of
I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT 47. Contractor/Consultant Page contating is Circulated and Contractor/Consultant Page contating is Normal (10. Disease).									
17. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature 18.			. Contractor/Consultant Representa	Consultant Representative's Name 19. Phone			20. Date		
			CONTRACTING RECORDS AND ON-SIT		OF THE DBE(S) HA		RED		
21. Local Age	ency Representative's Signature	22	. Local Agency Representative's Na	ime		23. Phone		24. Date	
		•						•	'

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Local Agency, Copy - Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

ADA NOTICE: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information, call (916) 445-1233, Local Assistance Procedures Manual TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS – FINAL REPORT-UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

- 1. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- 2. Federal-Aid Project Number Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- 3. Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- **4.** Contract Completion Date Enter the date the contract was completed.
- **5.** Contractor/Consultant Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- **6. Business Address -** Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- 7. Final Contract Amount Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- **8.** Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not applicable for consultant contracts.
- **9. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied** Enter description of work, services, or materials provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime contractor/consultant's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- **10.** Company Name and Business Address Enter the name, address, and phone number of all subcontracted contractors/consultants. Also, enter the prime contractor/consultant's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- **11. DBE Certification Number** Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. Leave blank if subcontractor is not a DBE.
- **12.** Contract Payments Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work performed or service provided. Include the prime contractor/consultant if the prime is a DBE. The Non-DBE column is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms that are not certified DBE or for work after a DBE becomes decertified.
- 13. Date Work Completed Enter the date the subcontractor/subconsultant's item work was completed.
- **14. Date of Final Payment** Enter the date when the prime contractor/consultant made the final payment to the subcontractor/subconsultant for the portion of work listed as being completed.
- **15. Original DBE Commitment Amount** Enter the "Total Claimed DBE Participation Dollars" from Exhibits 15-G or 10-O2 for the contract.
- 16. Total Enter the sum of the "Contract Payments" Non-DBE and DBE columns.
- 17. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- **18.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form.
- 19. Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **20. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- **21.** Local Agency Representative's Signature A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.
- **22.** Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form.
- 23. Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **24. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.

EXHIBIT 17-O DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

1. Local Agency Contract Number 2. Federal-Ald F		2. Federal-Ald Projec	oject Number 3. Local Agency			4. Contract Completion Date		
5. Contractor/Consultant 6. B		usiness Address			7. Final C	ontract Amount		
8. Contract Item Number	9. DBE Contact Information		10. DBE Certification Number	11. Amount Paid While Certified	12. Certification/ Decertification Date (Letter Attached)	1	3. Comments	
If there were no	o changes in the DBE certification of s	ubcontractors/subconsultants	s, indicate on the form.					
			Y THAT THE ABOVE INFO					
14. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature			15. Contractor/Consu	ıltant Representative's	Name	16. Phone	17. Date	
	I CE	RTIFY THAT THE CONTRA	CTING RECORDS AND OF	N-SITE PERFORMANCE	OF THE DBE(S) HAS BE	EN MONITORED		
18. Local Age	ency Representative's Signature		19. Local Agency Re	presentative's Name		20. Phone	21. Date	
DICTRIBUTION	di Original I anal Angara Caran Ca			:	_		•	

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Local Agency, Copy - Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

ADA NOTICE: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information, call (916) 445-1233, Local Assistance Procedures Manual TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

INSTRUCTIONS –DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

- 1. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- **2. Federal-Aid Project Number** Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- 3. Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- **4.** Contract Completion Date Enter the date the contract was completed.
- **5.** Contractor/Consultant Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- **6. Business Address -** Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- 7. Final Contract Amount Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- **8.** Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not applicable for consultant contracts.
- **9. DBE Contact Information** Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted contractors/consultants.
- 10. DBE Certification Number Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number.
- **11. Amount Paid While Certified** Enter the actual dollar value of the work performed by those subcontractors/subconsultants during the time period they are certified as a DBE.
- **12.** Certification/Decertification Date (Letter Attached) Enter either the date of the Decertification Letter sent out by the Office of Business and Economic Opportunity (OBEO) or the date of the Certification Certificate mailed out by OBEO.
- **13.** Comments If needed, provide any additional information in this section regarding any of the above certification status changes.
- **14.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- **15.** Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form.
- **16. Phone** Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- 17. Date Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- **18. Local Agency Representative's Signature** A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify

that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.

- **19.** Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form.
- **20. Phone** Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- **21. Date** Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.